
 
Agenda 

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, Sept 10, 2025 - 5:30 p.m. 
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 

970 Klamath Lane – Board Room 
Yuba City, CA  95993 

 
 
 

A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
Reception Desk, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  (8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday 
– excluding legal holidays) and the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ website at 
www.sutter.k12.ca.us. 
 
5:30 p.m. 1.0 Call to Order 
 
  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members:  
   Kash Gill, Trustee Area 3, President 
   Victoria Lachance, Trustee Area 5, Vice President 
   Gurv Pamma, Trustee Area 1, Member 
   Mike Reid, Trustee Area 2, Member 
   Harjit Singh, Trustee Area 4, Member 
    
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 

Members of the public are given an opportunity to address the Board 
regarding items not listed on the agenda.  The California Government Code, 
Section 54954.3(a) states, “…….no action shall be taken on any item not 
appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2. 
 

 
  5.0 August 13, 2025 Board Meeting Minutes  
    
 
   
 

http://www.sutter.k12.ca.us/


Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 3  
August 9, 2023 
 
  6.0     Investment Report    
   The Investment Statement as of July 31, 2025 from the Country Treasure  
   will be presented. 
   Assistant Superintendent, Ron Sherrod 
                 

7.0       Business Services Report 
            The monthly financial report for August will be reviewed. 
            Director, Nicolaas Hoogeveen 

    
  8.0       Donations  
   Punjabi American Heritage Society $300.00 
   Shady Creek Conrad’s Closet  $310.00 
   Grand Canyon University  $2,000.00 
               
  9.0  Quarterly Report on Williams/ Uniform Complaints  
   Period of April 2025 to June 2025 
        As per California Education Code Section 35186 the County Superintendent 
   reports on the number and nature of complaints filed on the following.  
   1. Textbooks and instructional materials   
   2.  Teacher vacancies or mis-assignments  
   3. Facilities and conditions. 
 
 
  10.0     COP Solar Fund       [ACTION] 
   To open a SCSOS Solar COP Fund at the Auditor-Treasure 
 
 
                        11.0     Items from the Superintendent/Board     
    
 

12.0 Adjournment 
 

 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to 
access the Board Meeting room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, 
or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-
822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board 
Meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 3 of 3  
August 9, 2023 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours prior 
to the scheduled meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County Superintendent 
of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 
 



 
Unapproved Minutes 

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 13, 2025 - 5:30 p.m. 
 
 

 
  1.0 Board President K. Gill opened the meeting at 5:30 p.m. August 13, 2025 at 
   the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane,  
   Yuba City, California, called a regular Sutter County Board of Education  
   meeting to order. 
 
  2.0 Board President K. Gill led the pledge of Allegiance 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members:  
   Kash Gill, Trustee Area 3, President- Present 
   Victoria Lachance, Trustee Area 5, Vice President- Present 
   Gurv Pamma, Trustee Area 1, Member- Present 
   Mike Reid, Trustee Area 2, Member-Absent 
   Harjit Singh, Trustee Area 4, Member-Present 
    
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 

None 
 

 
  5.0 Consent Agenda 
   A motion was made to approve the regular board meeting minutes 
   Motion: Victoria Lachance               Second: Gurv Pamma 
   Action: Carried 
   Ayes: 4  (1 Absent Reid)      Noes: 0           Abstain: 0 
  
  6.0     Investment Report    
   The Investment Statement as of June 2025 from the Country Treasure was 
   presented by Assistant Superintendent, Ron Sherrod he stated there was  
   a slight increase. 
                 

7.0       Business Services Report 
            The monthly financial report for July was reviewed by Director, Nicolaas  

  Hoogeveen. 
    



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  
August 9, 2023 
 
  8.0       Donations 
              Schools First Federal Credit Union donated $3500.00 for our Welcome  
   Back Day. 
    
 

9.0       Items from the Superintendent/Board  
 We had our Welcome Back Day thank you Victoria Lachance for attending 
 The CTC new build is on track 
 School started today for most in the county 
 Middle College update from Deputy Superintendent Joe Hendrix 

10.0 Adjournment 
 A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 5:39 p.m. 
            Motion: Harjit Singh            Second: Victoria Lachance 
 Action: Motion Carried 
 Ayes: 4 (1 Absent Reid)      Noes: 0         Abstain: 0 
 
 

 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to 
access the Board Meeting room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, 
or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-
822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board 
Meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours prior 
to the scheduled meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County Superintendent 
of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 
 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   6.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Investment Statements 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  September 10, 2025            
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
 X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The Investment Statement as of July 31, 2025 from the County Treasurer will be  
presented.  
  
 
 
 
 



















  Agenda Item No.  ___ 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:   

BOARD MEETING DATE:  

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 

Action 

Reports/Presentation 

Information 

Public Hearing 

Other (specify) 

PREPARED BY: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

PRESENTING TO BOARD: 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 



Description Account Original Operating Actuals to Projected Difference 2025-26 %

Codes Budget Budget Date Yr Totals (Col D - B) Actuals

as a %

7/1/25 7/15/25 8/15/25 8/15/25 of Budget
(A) (B) (C) (D)  (E)

A.  Revenues

    1. Local Control Funding Formula 8010-8099 12,099,350$     12,099,350$    434,699$       12,099,350$    -                   A 3.6%
    2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 4,489,293$       4,899,163$      12,599$         4,902,643$     3,480                B 0.3%

    3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 13,550,404$     13,550,404$    1,083,384$    13,559,849$    9,445                C 8.0%

    4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 21,802,094$     21,811,094$    1,107,133$    21,811,094$    -                   D 5.1%

      5. TOTAL REVENUES 51,941,141$     52,360,011$    2,637,815$    52,372,936$    12,925$            5.0%

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 11,357,105$     11,357,105$    368,680$       11,324,478$    (32,627)             E 3.2%

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 14,324,610$     14,324,610$    776,377$       14,101,914$    (222,696)           F 5.4%

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 12,138,181$     12,138,181$    449,360$       11,960,417$    (177,764)           G 3.7%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,260,846$       1,301,709$      144,957$       1,354,953$     53,244              H 11.1%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 9,440,690$       10,255,415$    1,069,234$    11,238,552$    983,137            I 10.4%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 273,478$          281,478$         11,117$         281,478$        -                   J 3.9%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 1,924,257$       1,924,257$      3,536$           1,924,257$     -                   K 0.2%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (125,714)$        (125,714)$        (9,182)$          (125,714)$       -                   L 7.3%

    9. Debt Service 7400-7499 847,732$          847,732$         -$               847,732$        -                   M 0.0%

 

       10. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 51,441,185$     52,304,773$    2,814,079$    52,908,067$    603,294            5.4%

C. Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B10)

D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 34,000$           42,000$           -$               42,000$          -                   0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 1,950,036$       1,950,036$      -$               1,950,036$     -                   0.0%

    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                 -$                 -                   0.0%

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses (1,916,036)$     (1,908,036)$     -$               (1,908,036)$    -$                 0.0%

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (1,416,080)$      (1,852,798)$      (176,264)$       (2,443,167)$     (590,369)$         H

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)

    1. Beginning Balance 32,983,622$     32,983,622$    32,983,622$  32,983,622$    -                   

    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                 -$                 -$               -$                

       Ending Balance 31,567,542$      31,130,824$     32,807,358$   30,540,455$     (590,369)$         

G. Components of Ending Fund Balance
    Designated Amounts 9711-9730 10,500$           10,500$           10,500$          -$                 

    Legally Restricted 9740-9760 15,348,062$     13,557,350$    12,961,420$    -$                 

    Assigned 9780 13,539,419$     14,850,234$    14,825,630$    -$                 

    Restricted Economic Uncertainty 9789 2,669,561$       2,712,740$      2,742,905$     -$                 

    Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 -$                 -$                 -$                -$                 

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
(Unrestricted and Restricted Combined)

August 2025

32.9%(590,369)$         (535,131)$       (176,264)$      55,238$           499,956$          

07/16/25-08/15/25



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget August Board Report

07/16/25-08/15/25

Amount Explanation of Differences

A Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)

  -$                       

B Federal Revenues (8100-8299)
Feather River Academy (FRA) 3,480$               Update budget for Title I allocation

3,480$               

C Other State Revenues (8300-8599)
Feather River Academy (FRA) 1,392$               Increase budget to match Prop 28 apportionment

Infant Program 8,472$               Adjust budget based on actuals received in 24/25

Various departments (419)$                 Miscellaneous adjustments

9,445$               

D Other Local Revenues (8600-8799)

-$                       

E Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)
Infant Program (32,627)$            Move budget to cover salary contracted substitutes

(32,627)$            

F Classified Salaries (2000-2999)
Special Education (222,148)$          Adjust budget for contracted substitutes

Various departments (548)$                 Miscellaneous adjustments

(222,696)$          

G Employee Benefits  (3000-3999)
Special Education (163,118)$          Adjust budget for contracted substitutes

Infant Program (14,646)$            Adjust budget to salary contract

(177,764)$          

H Books and Supplies  (4000-4999)
Special Education 11,800$             Increase budget to purchase books and supplies

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 2,164$               Establish budget for technology equipment

Tri County Induction Program (TCIP) 2,000$               Increase budget to purchase books

Feather River Academy (FRA) 36,436$             Increase budget for technology purchase for Middle College start up

Various departments 844$                  Miscellaneous adjustments

53,244$             

I Services, Other Operations (5000-5999)
Special Education 282,421$           Increase budget for contracted substitutes from salary/benefits

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 5,896$               Increase budget for California Association of School Counselors fees

Tri County Induction Program (TCIP) (2,775)$              Decrease budget for California Association of School Counselors fees

Feather River Academy (FRA) 1,378$               Increase budget to match Prop 28 apportionment carryover

Pathways Charter Academy 1,833$               Adjust budget to match Prop 28 apportionment carryover

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 638,244$           Increase budget for Central Gaither project and Professional Development

Infant Program 56,140$             Increase budget for Speech Language Pathologist contracted services

983,137$           

J Capital Outlay (6000-6999)

-$                       



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget August Board Report

07/16/25-08/15/25

Amount Explanation of Differences

K Other Outgo (7100 - 7299)

-$                       

L Direct Support / Indirect (7300-7399)

-$                       

M Debt Services (7400 - 7499)

-$                       

N Transfers In (8910-8979)

-$                       

O Transfers Out (7610-7629)

-$                       

P Contributions (8980-8999)

-$                       

Net Change in Current Year Budget (590,369)$          



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   8.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Donations  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    September 10, 2025                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Maggie Navarro  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
Ron Sherrod   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
Ron Sherrod  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 

Donor        Value  Purpose 
Punjabi American Heritage Society      $300.00 Hygiene kits for homeless children in Sutter 
Various SCSOS employees-Jean Wednesday     $310.00 Shady Creek Conrad’s Closet 
Grand Canyon University       $2,000.00 Lunch for Sp Ed PD days             
 
           
   
    
  
    Total   $2,610.00 
    

25-26 Year Current Period To Date 
Total Donations-Cash     $3,500.00 $2,310.00  $5,810.00 

 Total Donations-Value $0.00  $300.00  $300.00 
Total Donations  $3,500.00 $2,610.00  $6,110.00 
 

 









Agenda Item No. 9.0_ 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Report on Williams/ Uniform Complaints 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 10_. 2 __ 0 __ 2 ___ 5______ _ 

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: PREPARED BY: 

A ction Tania Martinez 

X Reports/P resentation SUBMITTED BY: 

Information Tania Martinez 

P ublic Hearing PRESENTING TO BOARD: 

Other (specify) Kristi Johnson 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 

A s  per California Education Code Section 35186 the county superintendent reports on the 

number and nature of complaints filed for: 

1) Textbooks and instructional materials

2) Teacher vacancies or mis-assignments

3) Facilities and conditions

None of the districts had any complaints filed during the period of April 2025 to 

June 2025. 





  Agenda Item No.  ___ 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:   

BOARD MEETING DATE:  

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 

Action 

Reports/Presentation 

Information 

Public Hearing 

Other (specify) 

PREPARED BY: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

PRESENTING TO BOARD: 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 



SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SUTTER COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

Resolution to Establish a Solar Certificate of Participation Fund 
Resolution No. 25-26 –  

 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools have a Solar 
Certificate of Participation Fund for the purpose of segregating Sutter County financial 
transactions related to the Certificate of Participation for the solar projects at Feather River 
Academy and Shady Creek.   

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board hereby authorizes the Sutter 
County Auditor and Treasurer to establish a fund to be known as the SCSOS Solar COP Fund. 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the resolution adopted by the Sutter County 
Board of Education, in a meeting thereof held on September 10, 2025 by the following vote: 
 
 
Gill _____; Singh _____; Lachance _____; Pamma _____; Reid _____ 
 
 Ayes: _____ 
 
 Noes: _____ 
 
 Absent: _____ 
 
 
 
 
____________________________    ____________________________ 
Kash Gill, President      Tom Reusser, Ex-officio Secretary 
Sutter County Board of Education    Sutter County Board of Education 


	1.0 Sept Agenda
	5.0 Unapproved Minutes August
	6.0 Investment Report
	6.2 Treasurer Investment Report
	7.0 Board Agenda Item - AUG
	Agenda Item No.  ___
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM:
	BOARD MEETING DATE:
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

	7.1 AUG Board Report 07-16-25 to 08-15-25
	8.0 Donations
	8.1 Punjabi American Heritage Society
	8.2 Jean Wed-Conrad's Closet
	8.3 Grand Canyon University
	9.0 Board Agenda Item Request April to June 25
	Agenda Item Jan-March Williams Quarterly Report.pdf

	10.0 COP Solar Fund -Board Agenda Item
	Agenda Item No.  ___
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM:
	BOARD MEETING DATE:
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

	10.1 SCSOS Solar COP Fund Resolution

	Agenda Item No: 7.0
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Business Services Report
	BOARD MEETING DATE: September 10, 2025
	PREPARED BY: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	SUBMITTED BY: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	PRESENTING TO BOARD: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: The monthly financial report for August will be reviewed
	Action: 
	0: 
	0: Off
	1: Yes

	1: 
	0: Off
	1: Off

	f1: 
	1: Off


	Check Box3: Off
	1: 10.0
	BOAR2D AGENDA ITEM: Open a Solar COP Fund at the Auditor-Treasurer
	BOAR3D MEETING DATE: 09/10/2025
	PREPA4RED BY: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	SUBM5ITTED BY: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	PRESENtTING TO BOARD: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	BACKGROUND AND yINFORMATION: To open a SCSOS Solar COP Fund at the Auditor-Treasurer.
	Actiony: 
	0: 
	0: Yes


	h: Off
	Actiojn: 
	1: 
	0: Off


	vv: Off


